
          

 

 

BLUEWATERS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

FEBRUARY 12, 2018 
6:15 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
6625 Miami Lakes Drive, Suite 374 

Miami Lakes, FL 33014 

www.bluewaterscdd.org 
305.777.0761 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile    



 
AGENDA 

BLUEWATERS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Somerset Academy Silver Palms-Cafeteria Room 

23255 S.W. 115th Avenue 
Miami, Florida  33032 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING  
February 12, 2018 

 6:15 p.m. 
 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………………Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Re-Election of Officers (as required) 

 Chairperson 
 Vice Chairperson 
 Secretary/Treasurer 
 Assistant Secretaries 

E. Approval of Minutes  

1. October 9, 2017 Regular Board Meeting ………………………..………………………………Page 2 

F. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

G. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

H. Old Business 

1. Update Regarding Parking Enforcement/Towing 

2. Update Regarding Stormwater Management – County Streets 
 

I. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Hurricane “Irma” and FEMA Funding 

2. Discussion Regarding 2018/2019 FY Proposed Budget Process 

3. Consider Lawn and Landscape Service Agreement Between the District 
    & Plant Brothers (Contractor) with Effective Date January 2, 2018……………………………..Page 7 

 
J. Administrative & Operational Matters 

1. Discussion Regarding Street Signage – District & County Responsibility 

2. Consider Proposal to Trim Coconut Palm Trees on Perimeter of Lake Banks…………………..Page 24 

3. Discussion Regarding General Election Qualifying Period for Seat #1 #2 & #5 

K. Board Member & Staff Closing Comments 

L. Adjourn 

 



Page 1



BLUEWATERS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

OCTOBER 9, 2017 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Neil Kalin called the October 9, 2017, Regular Board Meeting of the 
Bluewaters Community Development District to order at 6:21 p.m. in the Cafeteria Room 
of Somerset Academy Silver Palms located at 23255 SW 115th Avenue, Miami, Florida 
33032. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Mr. Kalin presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had 
been published in the Miami Daily Business Review on September 21, 2017, as part of the 
District’s Fiscal Year 2017/2018 Regular Meeting Schedule, as legally required. 
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
Mr. Kalin determined that the attendance of Chairman Warren Matthews, Vice Chairman 
Jasson Apolinario and Supervisor Lorna Burnett constituted a quorum and it was in order 
to proceed with the meeting.   
 
Staff in attendance included: District Manager Neil Kalin of Special District Services, Inc.; 
District Counsel Vanessa Steinerts of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. 
 
Also present was District resident Steven Lewis of Homestead, Florida. 
 
D. RE-ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
As a result of the resignation of Kent Calero, which was effective June 12, 2017, Mr. Kalin 
recommended that the Board re-elect officers.  He then provided the following list of names 
for consideration: 
 

a. Chairperson – Warren Matthews 
b. Vice Chairperson – Jasson Apolinario 
c. Secretary/Treasurer – Neil Kalin 
d. Assistant Secretaries – Lorna Burnett, Armando Silva and Gloria Perez 

 
A discussion ensued after which;  
 
A motion was made by Ms. Burnett, seconded by Mr. Matthews and passed unanimously 
to elect the Bluewaters Community Development District Officers, as stated above. 
 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  1.  June 12, 2017, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting 
 
Mr. Kalin presented the minutes of the June 12, 2017, Public Hearing & Regular Board 
Meeting and asked if there were any corrections and/or revisions.  There being none, a 
motion was made by Mr. Apolinario, seconded by Mr. Matthews and passed unanimously 

Page 2



BLUEWATERS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

OCTOBER 9, 2017 

approving the minutes of the June 12, 2017, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting, as 
presented. 
 
F.  ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
G. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
H.  OLD BUSINESS 
  1.  Discussion Regarding Parking Enforcement and Annual Estimated Costs 
 
Mr. Kalin provided information in the form of a proposal from Security Watch Group LLC, 
(hereafter “SWG”) for the purpose of acting as the District’s parking enforcement agent. 
The District had previously adopted District “Parking Rules” in August 2014 and recently, 
with numerous community parking violations the District, has been forced to take action. 
The proposal from SWG provides a minimum of twelve (12) random visits to the District 
per month and those violating the Parking Rules will have their respective vehicle(s) 
stickered with a 24-hour notice stating that the vehicle will be towed when the first 24 hour 
period expires. In addition to SWG acting as the District’s parking enforcement agent, 
SWG will provide patrols in an SWG vehicle equipped with security lighting.  The addition 
of a patrol vehicle will give the perception of security and could act as a deterrent to 
mischievous activity.  Timing of implementation of parking enforcement was discussed, 
including the mailing of a notice to residents, of the District’s intention to actively tow 
violators of the Parking Rules.  With regard to the proposed mailed notices to the residents, 
the consensus of the Board was since SWG will give a 24-hour sticker notice on each 
vehicle in violation of the Parking Rules that a letter to residents was not required. Mr. 
Kalin advised that the District had previously (2015) entered into an agreement with the 
towing company, Regulated Towing, Inc. and stated that he would contact Regulated to 
inform them of the District’s intention to commence towing before the end of November 
2017. Further discussion ensued after which; 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Apolinario, seconded by Mr. Matthews and passed 
unanimously to engage the firm of Security Watch Group LLC to serve as the District’s 
parking enforcement agent, as outlined in the proposal dated September 19, 2017; and 
authorizes District Counsel to prepare an Agreement between the District and Security 
Watch Group LLC, outlining all parameters and conditions for Parking Enforcement within 
District property; and further authorizes District officials to execute the Agreement (subject 
to final review and approval by Counsel and District Manager); and further authorizes the 
District Manager to inform Security Watch Group LLC of the pending Agreement. 
 
The Board recommended that the District post an announcement on the District’s website, 
informing the residents of the District’s intention to tow parking violators and to include 
in the announcement a depiction of the areas where parking is prohibited.  In addition, with 
the upcoming holidays, the District Manager and Staff will communicate with the Parking 

Page 3



BLUEWATERS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

OCTOBER 9, 2017 

Enforcement Agent to use leniency in placing stickers on vehicles associated with residents 
holding holiday parties. 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Discussion Regarding Hurricane Irma and Post Storm Community Clean-
Up 

 
Mr. Kalin briefly outlined the actions taken post Hurricane Irma.  County departments were 
notified of downed street signage and where debris was stacked on street/road right of 
ways.  Initially, Tracey’s Lawn Care, Inc. (the “Contractor”), removed fallen trees from 
streets and roads within the District.  The Board reported that the tree debris on interior 
roads/streets had become dump sites and that there had been no clean-up by the County. 
Mr. Kalin advised that the Contractor had cleaned the lake tracts over the weekend. Mr. 
Kalin indicated that he would reach out to the Contractor to determine when the District’s 
common areas would be cleaned and mowed.  In addition, Mr. Kalin stated that he would 
contact Miami-Dade County Waste Division to find out a timeframe for right of way debris 
removal.  The Board suggested that the County 3-1-1 contact information be posted on the 
District’s website. 
 
 2.  Consider Resolution No. 2017-05 – Adopting an Amended Fiscal Year 
2016/2017 Final Budget 
 
Mr. Kalin presented Resolution No. 2017-05, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE BLUEWATERS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDED 
FINAL FISCAL YEAR 2016/2017 BUDGET (“AMENDED 
BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 189, FLORIDA 
STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Kalin read the title of the resolution into the record, provided an explanation for the 
document and stated that the Operating Fund, as of September 30, 2017, had a positive 
balance. In addition, Mr. Kalin stated that the Debt Service Fund for the Series 2014 
Refunding Bonds had sufficient funds to make the required November 1, 2017, debt service 
payment(s).  A discussion ensued after which; 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Apolinario, seconded by Mr. Matthews and passed 
unanimously to approve and adopt Resolution No. 2017-05, as presented; thereby setting 
the amended/revised final budget for the 2016/2017 fiscal year. 
 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE & OPERATIONAL MATTERS 
 1.  Discussion Regarding Community Storwmater Management & Drainage 
 

Page 4



BLUEWATERS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

OCTOBER 9, 2017 

Mr. Matthews raised concerns regarding the street drainage system. Mr. Kalin explained 
that street drainage was a system of exfiltration trenches and that over time, portions of the 
system could have sediment built up.  Mr. Kalin stated that he would have Staff randomly 
inspect storm drain inlet structures within the County streets to determine the amount of 
sediment. The County will be notified of the findings by District Staff. 
 
 2.  Consider Approval of Two Year Renewal Option of Grau & Associates 
 
At the October 13, 2014, Bluewaters Community Development District Board of 
Supervisors’ meeting, the firm of Grau & Associates had been selected to perform the 9-
30-2014, 9-30-2015 and 9-30-2016 year end audits of the District with an option to perform 
the 9-30-2017 and 9-30-2018 audits. The fees for the 9-30-2014 audit were $3,300; the 
fees for the 9-30-2015 audit were $3,400; and the fees for the 9-30-2016 audit were $3,500. 
The proposed fees for the 9-30-2017 audit is $3,600, which is the budgeted amount for 
audit fees for Fiscal Year 2017/2018.  The proposed fee for the 9-30-18 audit is $3,600. 
Mr. Kalin explained that management has been pleased with the professionalism and 
competence of the Grau & Associates’ partners and staff; therefore, management 
recommends that the Board approve the renewal option for the Fiscal Year Ending 9-30-
2017 and 9-30-2018 audits for Grau & Associates. A discussion ensued after which; 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Apolinario, seconded by Mr. Matthews and passed 
unanimously to approve the 2-year renewal option for the fiscal years ending 9/30/2017 
and 9/30/2018 and authorizes management to engage the firm Grau & Associates to 
perform the referenced annual audits and approves the respective annual proposal fees of 
$3,600 per year per audit. 
 
 3.  Discussion Regarding Board Vacancies in Seats #1 and #4 
 
Mr. Kalin reminded the Board of the vacancies currently in Seats #1 and #4 and then asked 
Mr. Lewis, a resident of the District, if he was interested in serving on the District’s Board 
of Supervisors. Mr. Lewis stated that he was very interested in serving on the Board of 
Supervisors; however, although he had a voter registration card, the registration card had 
not been updated to indicate his address within the District boundaries.  A discussion 
ensued after which; 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Apolinario, seconded by Mr. Matthews and passed 
unanimously to conditionally appoint Mr. Steven Lewis to the 4-year unexpired term of 
office in Seat #4 and such term of office will expire in November 2020; and this 
appointment is subject to Mr. Lewis having his voter registration card updated to reflect 
his home address within the boundaries of the District.   
 
Mr. Lewis did not take the Oath of Office at this time and will be provided the Oath of 
Office form upon Mr. Kalin’s receipt of his updated voter registration card. 
 
K. BOARD MEMBER & STAFF CLOSING COMMENTS 
 
The Board was reminded that the next meeting would be held on December 11, 2017. 

Page 5



BLUEWATERS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

OCTOBER 9, 2017 

 
L. ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. 
Matthews, seconded by Ms. Burnett and unanimously passed to adjourn the Regular Board 
Meeting at 7:47 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________                  ______________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary                  Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 6



Landscape Maintenance Service 2018 1

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT (the 
“Agreement”) is made and entered into this ____ day of _________, 2018, by and between:

BLUEWATERS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit 
of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes, being situated in unincorporated Miami-Dade County, Florida, and 
whose address is 6625 Miami Lakes Drive, Suite 378, Miami Lakes, FL  33014 
(the “District”), and

PLANT BROTHERS LANDSCAPING, INC., a Florida corporation, whose
principal business address is 10505 W. Okeechobee Road, Suite 101, Hialeah 
Gardens, Florida 33018 (the "Contractor").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special purpose government established 
pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and

WHEREAS, the District has a need to retain an independent contractor to furnish 
landscape maintenance services for the property located within and around the District; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor has submitted a price quote and proposal dated November 27,
2017, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A (the “Proposal”) and represents that it 
is qualified to provide landscape maintenance services to the District; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreement and mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the parties, the parties agree as follows:

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals stated herein are true and correct and by this 
reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement.

Section 2. Scope of Work.  The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, 
supervision, equipment, supplies, tools, services, and all other necessary incidental things 
required to perform complete, high quality maintenance of the landscaping and irrigation of the 
District in accordance with the Proposal.  

A. The Contractor shall properly mow, edge, remove weeds, clean-up refuse and 
debris, prune trees and shrubs and trim trees, adjust the irrigation timing sensors, perform 
irrigation wet-checks and generally maintain and make minor repairs (up to Three Hundred 
Dollars {$300.00} per visit) to irrigation systems, and pick up litter throughout the community
on off mowing weeks according to the schedule attached to the Proposal (the “Work”).

B. Prior to initiating any major repairs of the irrigation pump and system, Contractor 
shall first obtain the written authorization from the District Manager of the District (the “Repair 

Page 7



Landscape Maintenance Service 2018 2

Work”).  Any and all irrigation heads, equipment, and facilities damaged by Contractor shall be 
the sole responsibility of Contractor to repair and replace, if necessary, and at Contractor’s sole 
cost and expense.

C. The Contractor shall also provide and properly install fertilizer to the common 
areas in the District, on an as needed basis, as directed by the District Manager (the 
“Fertilization”).

D. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for means, manner, and methods by 
which its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District.

E. In providing the Work, Repair Work and Fertilization, identified in this 
Agreement, the contract shall assign such staff as may be required, and such staff shall be 
responsible for coordinating, expediting, and controlling all aspects to assure proper completion.

F. The District Manager or his designee shall act as the District Representative with 
respect to the Work, Repair Work and Fertilization performed under this Agreement. The 
District Representative shall have complete authorization to transmit instructions, receive 
information, interpret and define the District’s policies and decisions with respect to the 
materials, equipment, elements, and systems pertinent to this Agreement.

G. At the request of the District Representative, the Contractor agrees to meet with 
the District Representative to walk the property to discuss conditions, schedules, and items of 
concern regarding this Agreement.

H. The Contractor shall use due care to protect the property of the District, its 
residents, and landowners from damage.  Contractor agrees to repair any damage resulting from 
Contractor’s activities and Work and Repair Work within twenty-four (24) hours.  

Section 3. Compensation.

A. The annual contract amount for the Work is FORTY-ONE THOUSAND THREE
HUNDRED NINETY-EIGHT AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($41,398.00), payable by District to 
Contractor for payment as monthly services are rendered and invoiced ($1,353.14 per Service 
Cut/Visit and $292.50 per month for Irrigation Wet Check).

B. The Repair Work shall be at an agreed upon price for the irrigation parts and labor 
and shall be approved by the District Manager prior to Repair Work commencement.  

C. The contract amount for Fertilization is ONE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED 
FIFTY AND 00/100 ($1,550.00) DOLLARS, per application.   

Section 4. Term.  This Agreement shall commence on January 2, 2018, nunc pro 
tunc, and be in full force and effect until September 30, 2018, unless otherwise terminated in 
accordance with this Agreement, and shall automatically renew for up to two (2) additional terms 
of one (1) year each unless terminated in accordance with this Agreement.

Page 8



Landscape Maintenance Service 2018 3

Section 5. Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement, without cause,
upon thirty (30) days written notice of termination to the other party. The District may terminate 
this Agreement with cause by providing written notice of termination to the Contractor.  Upon 
any termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for the work and 
services performed in accordance with this Agreement up and until the effective date of 
termination, subject to whatever offsets or claims the District may have against the Contractor. 

Section 6. Contractor’s Acceptance of Conditions.  The Contractor has carefully 
examined the District’s property upon which the Work, Repair Work and Fertilization under this 
Agreement will be performed and has made sufficient tests and other investigations to fully 
satisfy Contractor as to site conditions. The approval or acceptance of any part of the work 
performed by the Contractor by the District shall not operate as a waiver by the District of the 
strict compliance with any other terms and conditions of this Agreement and related 
specifications.  Any work required by this Agreement and related specifications not performed 
by the Contractor, after receipt of written notice in accordance with the notice provisions of this 
Agreement of such failure to perform said work, the District may recover the reasonable cost for 
such work from the Contractor or, reduce the sums of money due Contractor by the cost of such 
work incurred by the District.

Section 7. Notice. Any notice or other communication required or permitted by this 
Agreement by either party to the other shall be made in writing and shall be deemed given, 
served or delivered within three (3) days after the same is sent by certified or registered mail, 
postage prepaid, addressed to the addresses of the parties set forth below, or to such other 
address as either party may designate in accordance with the notice provisions hereof:

District: Bluewaters Community Development District
6625 Miami Lakes Drive, Suite 378
Miami Lakes, FL  33014
Attention:  District Manager

With copy to: Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A.
SunTrust Center, Sixth Floor
515 East Las Olas Blvd.
Fort Lauderdale, FL  33301
Attention:  Dennis E. Lyles, Esq.

Contractor: Plant Brothers Landscaping, Inc.
10505 W. Okeechobee Road, Suite 101
Hialeah Gardens, Florida  33018
Attention:  President

Section 8.    Insurance. The Contractor shall provide and maintain during the life of this 
Agreement the following insurance coverages from a company or companies licensed 
and authorized to do business in the field of insurance in the State of Florida with a  
minimum rating of B+ to A+, in accordance with the latest edition of A.M. Best’s 
Insurance Guide.

Page 9



Landscape Maintenance Service 2018 4

A.       Contractor shall not commence performance hereunder until it has obtained
at Contractor’s cost and expense all insurance required under this Section and such 
insurance has been approved by the District Manager of the District or its designee.
Certificates of Insurance reflecting evidence of the required insurance shall be filed 
with the District Manager prior to the commencement of work under this 
Agreement.  In the event the insurance certificate provided indicates that the 
insurance shall terminate and lapse during the period of this Agreement, then, in 
that event, the Contractor shall furnish, at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to 
expiration of the date of such insurance, a renewed certificate of insurance as 
proof that equal and like coverage for the balance of that period of the contract
and extension there under is in effect. All of the policies of insurance so required 
to be purchased and maintained shall contain a provision or endorsement that the 
coverage afforded shall not be canceled, materially changed or renewal refused 
until at least thirty (30) calendar days written notice has been given to District by 
certified mail.

B. Required Insurance to be obtained and maintained by Contractor:

i. Commercial Comprehensive General Liability Insurance 
to cover liability bodily injury, property damage, premises 
and property damage and contractual liability with the 
following limits of liability:

$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit – each occurrence
$2,000,000 Combined Single Limit – general aggregate
$1,000,000 Personal Injury
$1,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate

ii. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance to cover 
the use of and any owned, non-owned, scheduled or 
rented automotive equipment to be used in performance 
of the work and services under this Agreement with
minimum limits of $1,000,000 combined single limit per 
occurrence.

iii. Workers Compensation Insurance coverage as required by Florida 
law and Federal law, including, where applicable, the United States 
Longshoreman’s and Harbor Worker’s Act, the Federal Employers’ 
Liability Act and the Jones Act.  Employer’s Liability Insurance shall be 
provided with a minimum of One Hundred Thousand and xx/100 dollars 
($100,000.00) per accident.  Contractor shall agree to be responsible for 
the employment, conduct and control of its employees and for any injury 
sustained by such employees in the course of their employment.

C. Contractor shall have its insurer name District, its staff, 
consultants and supervisors as additional insureds on its 
Commercial General Liability policy and its Automobile Liability 
Insurance.

Page 10



Landscape Maintenance Service 2018 5

Section 9. Independent Contractor.  This Agreement does not create an 
employee/employer relationship between the parties.  It is the intent of the parties that the 
Contractor is an independent contractor under this Agreement and not the District’s employee for all 
purposes, including but not limited to, the application of the Fair Labor Standards Act minimum 
wage and overtime payments, Federal Insurance Contribution Act, the Social Security Act, the 
Federal Unemployment Tax Act, the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, the State Workers' 
Compensation Act, and the State unemployment insurance law. The Contractor shall retain sole and 
absolute discretion in the judgment of the manner and means of carrying out Contractor’s activities 
and responsibilities hereunder provided, further that administrative procedures applicable to services 
rendered under this Agreement shall be those of Contractor, which policies of Contractor shall not 
conflict with District, or other government policies, rules or regulations relating to the use of 
Contractor’s funds provided for herein. 

Section 10. Indemnification. Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors 
shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify the District, its directors, officers, employees, 
representatives and agents against any claims, damages, liabilities, losses and costs, including, 
but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness 
or intentionally wrongful conduct of Contractor, and other persons employed or utilized by 
Contractor in the performance of this Agreement or the work or services performed hereunder.
The Contractor and the District hereby agree and covenant that the Contractor has incorporated 
in the original cost proposal, which constitutes the contractor sum payable by the District to the 
Contractor, specific additional consideration in the amount of ten dollars ($10.00) sufficient to 
support this obligation of indemnification provided for in this Section. The obligation of the 
Contractor to indemnify the District is not subject to any offset, limitation or defense as a result 
of any insurance proceeds available to either the District or the Contractor.  This indemnification 
agreement is separate and apart from, and in no way limited by, any insurance provided pursuant 
to this Agreement or otherwise. Nothing herein is intended to be construed, by either party, as a 
waiver of the protections, immunities, and limitations afforded a governmental entity pursuant to 
Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

Section 11. Extra Work.  The Contractor shall perform all extra work not specified 
herein that may be ordered in writing by the District.  For the extra work, the Contractor shall be 
paid at the rate named in this Agreement for the work of a similar nature and character.  All extra 
work ordered and performed will be paid for at the price in the written order for such extra work.

Section 12. No Sales or Excise Tax.  The District is exempt from Federal Excise and 
Florida Sales taxes.  Exemption numbers will be provided to the Contractor upon request.  All 
sales and excise taxes shall be paid by and be the responsibility of the Contractor.  

Section 13.  Public Records.  

A. Contractor shall, pursuant to and in accordance with Section 119.0701, Florida 
Statutes, comply with the public records laws of the State of Florida, and specifically shall:

1. Keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the 
services or work set forth in this Agreement; and

Page 11



Landscape Maintenance Service 2018 6

2. Upon the request of the District’s custodian of public records, provide the 
District with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be 
inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed 
the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise 
provided by law; and

3. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt 
from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as 
authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following 
completion of the Agreement if the Contractor does not transfer the 
records to the District; and

4. Upon completion of the Agreement, transfer, at no cost to the District, all 
public records in possession of the Contractor or keep and maintain public 
records required by the District to perform the service or work provided 
for in this Agreement.  If the Contractor transfers all public records to the 
District upon completion of the Agreement, the Contractor shall destroy 
any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt 
from public disclosure requirements. If the Contractor keeps and maintains 
public records upon completion of the Agreement, the Contractor shall 
meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records.  All records 
stored electronically must be provided to the District, upon request from 
the District’s custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible 
with the information technology systems of the District.

B. Contractor acknowledges that any requests to inspect or copy public records 
relating to this Agreement must be made directly to the District pursuant to Section 119.0701(3), 
Florida Statutes.  If notified by the District of a public records request for records not in the 
possession of the District but in possession of the Contractor, the Contractor shall provide such 
records to the District or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time.  
Contractor acknowledges that should Contractor fail to provide the public records to the District 
within a reasonable time, Contractor may be subject to penalties pursuant to Section 119.10, 
Florida Statutes.  

C. IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRATOR’S 
DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS 
AGREEMENT/CONTRACT, THE CONTRACTOR MAY CONTACT THE 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS FOR THE DISTRICT AT:

SPECIAL DISTRICT SERVICES, INC.
2501A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410
TELEPHONE: 1-877-737-4922
EMAIL: fware@sdsinc.org

Page 12



Landscape Maintenance Service 2018 7

Section 14.  Interpretation of Agreement.  It is expressly agreed that, under no 
circumstances, conditions or situations, shall this Agreement or its terms, conditions, and 
provisions be more strongly or strictly construed against the District than against the Contractor.

Section 15. Ambiguities.  Any ambiguity or uncertainty shall be interpreted and 
construed by the District, whose decision shall be final and binding upon all parties.  In the event 
of a conflict with respect to terms of this Agreement and attached Exhibits hereto, this 
Agreement shall control over any Exhibit herein.

Section 16. Governing Law; Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws 
of the State of Florida with venue lying in Miami-Dade County, Florida. 

Section 17. Extent of Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire and 
integrated Agreement between the District and the Contractor and supersedes all prior 
negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral.

Section 18. Assignment.  No assignment by the Contractor of this Agreement, or any 
part therefor, or any monies due, or to become due thereunder shall be made without the prior 
written approval and consent of the District.

Section 19. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement or application thereof to 
any person or situation shall to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this 
Agreement, and the application of such provisions to persons or situations other than those as to 
which it shall have been held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and shall 
continue in full force and effect, and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

Section 20. Amendment.  No change or modification of this Agreement shall be valid 
unless in writing and signed by all parties hereto.   

Section 21. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event either party is required to enforce this 
Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
recover all fess and costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs for trial, 
alternative dispute resolution, and appellate proceedings.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGES

Page 13



Landscape Maintenance Service 2018 8

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement and 
further agree that it shall take effect as of the Effective Date first above written.

BLUEWATERS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

By: ________________________________
Chairperson/Vice-Chairperson

this ____ day of ______________, 2018

WITNESS: PLANT BROTHERS LANDSCAPING,
INC., a Florida corporation

______________________________ ___________________________________
Print name:_____________________ By: ________________________________

Title:_______________________________
______________________________
Print name: ____________________ this ____ day of ______________ , 2018

Page 14



Landscape Maintenance Service 2018 9

EXHIBIT A

PROPOSAL

Page 15



 

 

 

 
 
 
    
 

 
 
 

 
10505 W Okeechobee Rd | Hialeah Gardens, FL 33018 

Telephone 305-247-1672 | Fax 305-247-7643 

 

Page 16



2

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



3 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18



4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



5 

 

Customer Authorized Signature                                  Print Name                                Date 

Page 20



6 

 

DESCRIPTION  J F M A M J J A S O N D TOTAL 

MOWING BI-WEEKLY WKLY BI-WEEKLY 28 

DETAIL 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 12 

PALM PRUNING UNDER 12FT 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 12 

TREE TRIMMING UNDER 7FT 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 12 

PALM PRUNING OVER 12FT - 

TREE TRIMMING OVER 7FT - 

FERTILIZATION LAWN - 

FERTILIZATION SHRUBS - 

FERTILIZATION PALMS - 

FERTILIZATION TREES - 

PEST CONTROL LAWN - 

PEST CONTROL SHRUBS - 

PEST CONTROL PALMS - 

PEST CONTROL TREES - 

IRRIGATION WET CHECK 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 12 

ANNUALS - 

MULCH - 

LITTER PICKUP  BI-WEEKLY  24 

    

                            

                           Customer Authorized Signature                                  Print Name                                Date              

Page 21



Page 22



EXHIBIT - Service Area

Page 23



Page 24


	Bluewaters Community Development District - February 12, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	October 9, 2017 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Lawn and Landscape Service Agreement Between the District & Plant Brothers (Contractor) with Effective Date January 2, 2018
	Consider Proposal to Trim Coconut Palm Trees on Perimeter of Lake Banks




